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Independent Auditor's Report

Honorable City Council
City of Winooski
27 West Allen Street
Winooski, Vermont 05404
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Winooski, Vermont, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Winooski,
Vermont’s basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
“Government Auditing Standards”, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the City of Winooski, Vermont’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City of Winooski, Vermont’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the businessactivities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Winooski, Vermont as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and
cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require
that management’s discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 17, and the budgetary comparison
for the General Fund in Schedule 1 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the City of Winooski, Vermont’s basic financial
statements. The combining fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. These schedules have not
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.
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The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular
A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments and Nonprofit Organizations” and is not a required
part of the financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards is fairly stated, in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by “Government Auditing Standards”
In accordance with “Government Auditing Standards”, we have also issued our
report dated January 21, 2015 on our consideration of the City of Winooski, Vermont’s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with “Government Auditing Standards” in considering the City of Winooski, Vermont’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.
January 21, 2015
Montpelier, Vermont
VT Lic. #92-000180
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INTRODUCTION
The financial statements attached reflect the City of Winooski’s set of government-wide financial
statements, bringing the City into compliance with the requirements of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. The analysis in this report was prepared by Dr. James Ticehurst, the City Treasurer. As
Treasurer, Jim functions on citizen’s behalf overseeing the finances in the City. He reports directly to the
Council and has total access to all of our records. This arrangement increases the transparency of our
finances and helps keep the Council informed independent of City management.
The report indicates increasing financial health in the City. We are recovering from the economic
downturn in fine shape. Property values headed up this year, and sales were strong. There is plenty of
investment in single family homes. We see lots of repairs and some significant upgrades. The higher end
apartment sector is growing and rental units are filling quickly.
Our financial systems are strengthening. We have the ability to generate our own financial statements.
This saves money on the audit, improves the quality of the data, and allows us to keep better tabs on
finances throughout the year.
Finally, this year’s audit for the second year in a row is “clean”. You will see an unqualified opinion
with no major findings. Two years in a row is a good indication of the strength of our finance team.
While the rules change constantly, and keeping up takes hard work, we have the skills and ability in the
City to continue to build a solid, transparent, and contemporary financial system.
With that, I am pleased to present the audit for fiscal year 2014.
GENERAL CITIZEN SUMMARY
This section is a summary of the detailed information presented. It is intended to be a clear and concise
summary of important points and able to be understood without significant financial background. The
actual details will require some level of expertise to understand.
The City generated another surplus in the General Fund in 2014. Most of the surplus comes to two key
factors: significant collection of a backlog of delinquent taxes and savings from vacant positions in
Public Works. If you remove those two factors, our budget performance was just slightly over the
projection. Since neither of those factors is likely to recur, we believe our budgeting practice is accurate
and we have a handle on expenses.
We also renegotiated the debt in the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) district (downtown), stabilizing our
terms and interest rate for the final ten years. In doing so, we made a large principal payment that puts us
in a position to retire the debt on time and start to make scheduled payments on the Pecor note. While we
are significantly behind in our payments, we have a new agreement with the Pecor family and are
beginning to address the backlog. This note and the one with the Winooski Community Development
Corporation are limited to TIF funding and cannot be a general obligation of the City. The current
development will support the remainder of the bond payments and allow for payment of the Pecor note.
In short, the project is performing as planned, though with a delay due to the economic downturn in
2008.
(4)
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We continue to underfund our General Fund capital budget due in part to our decision to pay debt out of
this fund. This is an unusual policy. As we take on new debt, we must also approve additional funds to
make the principal and interest payments, leaving the designated funds in the capital budget available for
streets, sidewalks, equipment replacement, and facility repair and maintenance.
We continue to struggle with our forty year old pool that is well beyond its useful life. There are grants
that will help but not likely cover the full cost of a replacement. We will be looking at what type of pool
facilities we need moving forward and start that conversation.
We continue to look at the financial performance of the O’Brien Community Center. The leases are now
stronger for the City and we are implementing the escalators in the contracts. The Community Services
Director continues to work on a sustainable plan. We are, and will be concerned that the loss of a single
tenant may cause a setback.
We also need to examine our old and tired facilities. Regulations and operations of the police department
are growing beyond the ability of the building to accommodate the growth. City Hall will need to
insulate all of the interior walls and replace all of the windows in order to begin to address the energy
efficiency work needed. We will be asking various committees to examine what we need in modern
facilities and to create a plan for the future. The plan should be developed in the next two years.
Finally, the City has cut back significantly on staff in order to address budget shortfalls. We took this
action to address a steady loss in revenue over the last five years. We must be wise in the future, assuring
that the city is adequately staffed, that staff has the needed skills and that pay allows us to recruit the
needed talent. This is not currently a significant issue with the exception of our administrative staff, but
must be watched carefully moving forward.
The Water and Wastewater / Stormwater budgets remain strong with significant surplus. Some of the
surplus must be used to improve systems, the rest can only be used for projects in those funds, but at the
full discretion of the city. We are using the funds to do critical capital projects. We believe it is unwise to
use these funds for operating costs (those that will occur every year). Using savings to pay these
expenses will only delay rate increases and make them very large when savings are gone. We have a
significant amount of work that needs to be done on these systems and will be working on repair and
replacement over the next few years.
There is significant risk in the waste water / stormwater operations. New federal and state mandates
aimed at cleaning up Lake Champlain are going to cost about $4M over the next few years. This will
need to be a partnership between the state and local governments, and likely need federal funds. We are
keeping a close eye on this issue as it works its way through the legislature.
The parking garage is ten years old and in need of planned repairs. We also need to develop some new
parking to address the daytime use. A parking shortfall is a sign of effective growth in the economy, but
must be addressed by the City AND the businesses involved. Paid parking in the downtown will
generate enough money to begin to develop some solutions to the shortfall. However, we will continue
to work with businesses to assure that growth can continue to occur.
(5)
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The financial state of the City remains strong. For each area of concern, there is a reasonable plan. The
budget process allows us to address issues in a transparent manner and assures that the Council remains
keenly aware of issues long before they develop.
We are proud of the progress we have made and excited about our future.
What follows is an analysis of the particular performance of all City funds prepared by our Treasurer.
The issues require some understanding of accounting and finance. We will do our best to speak in plain
language where concepts allow.
Please address any questions you may have to:
K. R. Decarreau (Deac)
City Manager
(802) 655 6410
deac@winooskivt.org
or
James Ticehurst (Jim)
Treasurer
jticehurst@winooskivt.org
or a member of the City Council whose contact information is available on our website.
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Government-wide financial statements provide a general overview of the City’s financial position more
in keeping with the private sector. The advantage of such a report is the ability to understand where
items like debt and post-employment benefits have on the long-term viability of the City. It is far less
likely to miss the fact that we have thousands of dollars that we will owe at some point and no plan to
address the gap. The one caution is that you will see a value on items like streets, sidewalks, water lines,
and sewage treatment facilities that have a value “on the books”, but cannot be sold as with private
businesses assets.
Here is an explanation of the various funds you will see as they relate to the City of Winooski.
Governmental Activities
You will see several terms in these statements. “Governmental Activities” refers to basic city services
funded by revenue from sources like taxes, fees and fines, charges for services, or grants. Our Tax
Increment Financing District financials are represented in this category as well.
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Major Governmental Funds
Within the Government activities statement we have four major funds. The first is the General Fund
which includes all activities funded in whole or in large part by revenue from property taxes, charges
for services, fees and fines, interest1, and reimbursements for services from the business-type funds,
from the school for the School Resource Officer, and from the State for highway maintenance. It also
includes reserve funds that include money that has been put aside for special uses. This fund also
includes programs that the City runs with solely or mostly with grants and donations over time –
youth programming, senior funds, Justice Center, sequestered funds (Fire and Police), and Reparative
Board Funds. These programs depend on grants for their existence and would not exist without an
outside funding source or increased revenue from taxes or fees.
The second fund is the TIF Downtown Fund which includes revenue from property taxes generated
in the Downtown Redevelopment Area over and above the value of properties in the area before the
project began. This is called the “increment”. It also includes revenue from land sales and leases, a
contribution from the parking garage, and any revenue generated in the area that was not available
prior to the district being established. This also is where the expenses that are exclusive to the TIF are
represented. This includes repairs and maintenance of items built in the district, further investment in
infrastructure (like adding to the Riverwalk), and principal and interest payments on the debt.
The Community Development Loan Fund is money the City has acquired through grants or
through property sales that is used to assist homeowners in bringing their properties into compliance
with various regulations. They are Home Improvement Program loans that may be made at low or no
interest and may have terms that require payment at time if sale.
Finally, the City Capital Reserve Fund contains money the City sets aside in anticipation of needing
to replace or make major repairs to city assets.
Nonmajor Funds
The Nonmajor funds are typically small funds (see Schedule 2) that receive revenue from grants or
other targeted programs by the state. These programs include Asset Forfeiture (Police Restricted
Fund), Women Helping Battered Women (city awarded grant run by WHBW), Justice Assistance
Grant (police restricted fund), and Community Center (donations to center).
Statement of Net Position – All Funds
This Statement of Net Position reflects the value of all of the assets of the City of Winooski as of
June 30, 2014. This includes cash and receivables (money we are owed for services performed or
delinquent taxes), notes receivables (largely from the TIF), prepaid expenses (items or services we
paid for during FY14, but have not yet received), internal balances (money held in the general fund,

1

The City’s funds are currently kept in a saving account or a money market account at TDBank. The City’s policy is to have
no risk in our investments, which concurs with requirements on the Federal grants we receive and on our municipal bonds.
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but belonging to other municipal funds and always equal to 0), and capital assets owned by the city.
All of these values are listed on the following Exhibit A as Total Assets.
From these Total Assets we must deduct those values that reflect the amounts the City owes such as,
Other Liabilities (Accounts payables, notes payable within one year, and other payables due from
the city), plus Long-term liabilities (payable due over one year, i.e. bonds, notes over one year, and
other payables based on long term commitment). These are shown on Exhibit A as Total Liabilities.
Also deducted are Deferred Inflows of Resources, items that have been paid for in one fiscal year
with delivery expected the next year. In this case it represents only taxes that were paid in advance.
This is a summary of our Net Position – Exhibit A.

2014

2013

Governmental

Business-type

T otal

Governmental

Business-type

T otal

Activities

Activities

Government

Activities

Activities

Government

Current and other assets

$6,300,770

$3,374,143

$9,674,913

$7,343,422

$3,203,726

$10,547,148

Capital assets

27,389,803

23,725,130

51,114,933

29,044,092

24,293,867

53,337,959

Total assets

33,690,573

27,099,273

60,789,846

36,387,514

27,497,593

63,885,107

Deferred Outflows of Resources

1,419,503

0

1,419,503

0

0

0

Other liabilities

2,573,189

284,220

2,857,409

2,110,998

212,223

2,323,221

Long term liabilities

24,826,631

1,717,066

26,543,697

27,349,100

1,914,943

29,264,043

Total liabilities

27,399,820

2,001,286

29,401,106

29,460,098

2,127,166

31,587,264

2,055

0

2,055

5,408

0

5,408

Net investment in capital assets

4,320,878

22,674,097

26,994,975

1,909,978

23,122,712

25,032,690

Restricted

1,395,871

360,573

1,756,444

2,510,139

261,250

2,771,389

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net position:

Unrestricted
Total net position

1,991,452

2,063,317

4,054,769

2,501,891

1,986,465

4,488,356

$7,708,201

$25,097,987

$32,806,188

$6,922,008

$25,370,427

$32,292,435
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Statement of Activities – Exhibit B
A summary of the statement of activities and changes in net position is as follows:
2014

2013

Governmental Business-type

T otal

Governmental Business-type

T otal

Activities

Activities

Government

Activities

Activities

Government

$1,601,710

$2,610,329

$4,212,039

$1,480,391

$2,682,351

$4,162,742

REVENUES
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants

701,514

0

701,514

1,474,547

0

1,474,547

Capital grants and contributions

296,213

20,000

316,213

93,753

28,694

122,447

6,835,224

0

6,835,224

6,634,148

0

6,634,148

15,104

473

15,577

13,112

558

13,670

133,070

217

133,287

541,744

0

541,744

62,123

0

62,123

54,208

0

54,208

9,644,958

2,631,019

12,275,977

10,291,903

2,711,603

13,003,506

General government

1,612,186

0

1,612,186

1,499,987

0

1,499,987

Public safety

2,817,132

0

2,817,132

2,929,329

0

2,929,329

Public works

1,997,182

0

1,997,182

1,991,001

0

1,991,001

Culture and recreation

863,698

0

863,698

659,728

0

659,728

Community development

619,112

0

619,112

1,391,255

0

1,391,255

1,222,443

0

1,222,443

1,286,438

0

1,286,438

Sewer

0

1,100,400

1,100,400

0

1,087,911

1,087,911

Water

0

804,729

804,729

0

822,407

822,407

Parking garage

0

725,342

725,342

0

652,700

652,700

9,131,753

2,630,471

11,762,224

9,757,738

2,563,018

12,320,756

534,165

148,585

General revenues:
Property taxes and penalties
Earnings from investments
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets
Other
T otal revenues

PROGRAM EXPENSES

Interest on long-term debt

T otal program expenses

Excess revenues (expenses)
before transfers

T ransfers

Change in Net Position

513,205

272,988

$786,193

548

(272,988)

($272,440)

These results are discussed in the following pages.
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513,753

0

$513,753

355,038

$889,203

(355,038)

($206,453)

682,750

0

$682,750
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Government-Wide FY2014 Budget Performance
This audit reflects several types of financial activities in the General Fund. These activities will be
divided within several distinct categories, with each category outlining in brief detail the financial
outcome for its operations during FY2014.
The first category involves the General Funds FY2014 budget to actual outcomes. These financial
activities are financed with revenues generated from taxes, fees, charges for services, and other
types of revenues in order to meet the budgetary expenditures for the operation of the City's annual
services and programs for its citizens.
The second financial activity type included in the General Fund in these financial statements are
Program Funds, which include programs financed through fees, grants revenues and/or donation of
varying types. Should these grant revenues cease to be available those programs supported by this
type revenue stream would cease to exist or be greatly reduced or even cease to operate.
The third category is that of Reserve Funds, which are funds accumulated from the excess of
budgetary operations over several years or from non-budgetary operations of other programs.
General Fund Budgetary Operations (Schedule 1)
The City’s General Fund FY14 budget resulted in a surplus of $280,542. This was a result of excess
revenues of $158,984 for the year while expenses fell below budget by $121,558. Briefly the
reasons are as follows:
Revenues: (Over budget by $158,984)
Property tax revenues showed an additional return of $111,107 due mainly from the collection of
delinquent taxes and interest, and a slight adjustment in property taxes. Charges for Services were
also up by approximately $13,171, with Fines and Fees increased by $8,394, Licenses and Permits
up by an additional $7,996 and Other Revenues up by $34,295. The O'Brien Community Center
repaid to the general fund an additional $8,603 to augment the additional expenses paid by the city
on its behalf.
Expenses: (Under budget by $121,558)
Most of the city departments were either slightly under their budget for the year or within 1-2% of
their budgeted allotment. The majority of the expense savings resulted within the Public Works
Department which expended $105,613 less of its total budget for the fiscal year. The majority of
this savings was realized due to three full-time positions becoming vacant early in FY14 from
retirement or injury and left vacant for much of the fiscal year. The Police Department also saved
$15,397 of their budget by not expending all of their budgeted overtime dollars. The Community
Services Department overspent its allocated budget by $12,034 because of new employee benefits
enrollment and retroactive wage adjustments.
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The remaining savings resulted in the lower than expected expenditures in the many of the
remaining departments with slight over expenditures in others. On a whole the city performed quite
well in their budget considerations and showed a cost effective approach to city revenues and
expenses. As stated in previous audits mild winters may not always occur, staff vacancies within
our small employment ranks may not always yield savings, and grant opportunities and
availabilities may not always be present therefore city services and social programs may need
continued considerations for continuity and life. These and other realities and trends may lead us to
developing and/or maintaining assumptions of budgetary operations.
Changes in Fund Balance
This section will address how well the city did financially as an outcome of fiscal 2014 activities.
As a result of all governmental activities for major as well as non-major fund activities in FY14, the
city's governmental fund balance was decreased by $1,428,723. The major reason for the decrease
was due to extra bond principal and interest payments within the TIF Fund discussed below.
Explanation and details are shown on Exhibit D of this audit report. The fund balance is sometimes
a bit complicated since the City's accounting standards are on a modified cash basis which does not
always allow for funds being available to spend in the short term. However over the intermediate
short term and the long term the city enjoys financial viability and again shows indications of a
healthy financial base.
Outside of the actual General Fund budget program, there are other small and special revenue funds
that impacted the change in the General Fund balance. A recap of these programs is as follows:
Program
Reimbursables

Balance
$(10,922)

Notes
Outstanding insurance claims expected to be received

Community Services
Program

$39,218

Primarily excess revenue from Afterschool Program

Reserves

$(7,710)

Putting aside fund for future projects

Fire Programs

$ 1,907

Funds to be used for HazMat training and supplies

With those balances on a GAAP basis, the total reported change in fund balance for the general fund
was is $303,035 for 2014.
Other Major and Nonmajor Funds in Government-wide Activities (Exhibit D)
The remainder of the change in net position occurred in funds other than the General Fund. The TIF
saw a negative change in its Fund Balance by $1,495,552. This was due primarily to additional debt
payments during refinancing that was partially offset by receipts from a payment of $56,146 on an
arrears receivable and $824,500 on the sale of lot 7C. The net total reduced the TIF Fund Balance to
$403,522 but all was in keeping with its bond financing compliance.
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The Community Development Loan Program ended the year with an increase in its net position by
$43,977. This was a result of revenues for loan repayments exceeding expenses for new loans by
that amount. As a part of this program, the City issued two grants for rehabilitating properties for
the Champlain Housing Trust. As of this fiscal year end the program appears in solid financial
position with a fund balance of $305,316.
The City's Capital Reserve Fund ended FY14 with a slightly lower balance than the previous year.
This was due to the use of bond funds received in a prior fiscal year to complete several street
reconstruction projects throughout the City. The fund still remains in an acceptable financial
position at the end of fiscal year 2014 with capital reserve planning taking on momentum during
fiscal year 2015.
Understanding Transfers
A list of transfers appears in the notes to the financial statements of this audit report. There were a
total of five (5) specific fund transfers that occurred during FY14. These transfers are as follows
with explanations:
From

To

General Fund

Capital Fund

General Fund

Community Justice Center

TIF Downtown Fund

Amount

$

Purpose

391,958

The City runs all capital expenses out of a separate fund that is included
in these financial statements as a major fund. This is the amount
approved by voters dedicated to capital. Running a separate fund
assures all monies are spent as intended and allows us to put aside
money over several years (save) toward a repair or replacement. (see City
Capital Reserve Fund)

11,000

The City must provide a match to the grant of 10% of the cost of the
program. We run the expenses in a special fund to make reporting easier
and transfer the match from the Police Department at the end of the year.

General Fund

225,146

The amount of the budget representing work the City performed in the
TIF district over and above what was needed before the project. This is
allowed in Act 159 of 2000 (Winooski TIF), in Act 80 of 2013 (TIF
Adjustment) and in the Rulemaking underway.

Community Center Fund

General Fund

23,760

Funds required from the Community Center Reserve to support operation
of the building

Parking Garage Fund

TIF

272,988

$

924,852

(12)

Funds required by the terms of the bond to help make payments. All
excess income over approved operating and capital reserves must be
swept into the TIF.

CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2014
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – Governmental
Activities
As seen in Exhibit C of this audit, the general fund balance as of June 30, 2014 is $1,705,349, an
increase of $303,035. Of this amount $174,272 is classified as prepaid expenses as it is for
commitments by the City. An additional $749,901 is assigned by the Council to various other
projects. The City can spend these funds in other ways and for other activities; however, some
funding assignments do reflect long-term commitments. The remaining funds, $781,176 is
unassigned and is 12.8% of the 2014 budget, slightly higher than the approximately 8.2% thirty day
cash on hand level approved by the Council. This approval is calculated at $499,114 and represents
a remaining balance excess of $282,063. This excess may result in funds being transferred to the
Capital Reserve Fund.
Fund balance totals are a way to describe the financial health of the city and its various programs
and operations. It also takes into consideration the assets and liabilities of the city and its funding
sources. Given the outcomes of the fiscal year 2014 audit we believe the city is in a strong financial
position, and with continuing monitoring of its financial process, strong operational management
and excellent oversight by the Council, there should remain a strong and viable source of public
services to City residents.
Our conclusion is that our Government-Wide Activities continues to maintain a strong financial
position as evidenced by the positive outcomes of FY14. There are still some exceptions in that our
Capital Fund continues to be underfunded and the TIF Downtown Fund is still burdened by the debt
payment issues relating to existing loans from Ray Pecor and the WCDC. The long-term health and
financial and economic viability of the O'Brien Community Center appears strong and its status is
planned to be shifted to that of a business-type activity during FY15.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES (PROPRIETARY FUNDS)
Business-Type Activities
The term "Business-Type Activities" refers to those activities that are known as "Proprietary
Activities" or those activities that are funded through charges for services or for products and not
supported by any form of government funding, i.e. taxes, governmental fees, etc. Within these
activities we find the Water, Sewer (Stormwater), and Parking Garage operations. Since these
activities are self-funded by providing a service or product, they are classified as business-type
activities and not governmental activities.
Budget Performance
Revenues in Business-Type activities are derived from fees or charges for services. The Water and
Sewer Departments bill for usage, while the Parking Garage charges for services based on long and
short-term parking fees and daily meter collections

(13)
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Water
Net operating income as an outcome of FY14 reflects a positive surplus of $8,813 (Exhibit G);
however, after payment of interest expenses that surplus amounted to a slight deficit of $4,986 for
the fiscal year. The major factor in this deficit was brought about as a result of the reduced amounts
of consumer water usage. The lower water usage was augmented by a reduced total budgetary
expenses helped reduce the total net deficit to that as identified.
Change in Net Position
The resulting loss of net position as stated on Exhibit G of this audit is totally reflective of the
deficit stated above and was not impacted by any other occurrence or financial outcome in the water
department for fiscal 2014.
Sewer (Storm Water)
Because wastewater revenues are calculated as a function of water usage these revenues were less
than budgeted in FY2014 due to the decreased consumer water usage. However, because of
unanticipated Aid-In-Expansion Fees of $99,323, total wastewater revenues for all of FY14 were
over budget projections by $81,048. Aid-In-Expansion fees are restricted as to use and must be
reserved for projects that expand the capacity at the treatment facility.
Due to differences in budgetary versus GAAP reporting expenditures within the budget reflected
lower than expected use in the area of plant improvements, equipment purchases, proposed
reconstruction projects and the aeration and clarification bond expense. However a non-budgeted
depreciation expense of $316,948 created a deficit of $11,552 for the fiscal year.
Change in Net Position
As a result of those circumstances just mentioned, the resulting loss in net position for the Sewer
Department as shown on Exhibit G reflects the deficit as stated.
Parking Garage
Although the Parking Garage is categorized as a "Business-Type Activity" and is a "Proprietary
Activity", it is a partner in the TIF Downtown fund and as such is bound by some specific rules and
requirements.
One of the major rules governing the Parking Garage Fund is that the fund must transfer over to the
TIF Downtown Fund any realized balances over a 45 day cash on hand operating reserve plus
assigned capital funds at the end of each fiscal year period.
From a prospective viewpoint the budgeted revenues for FY14 showed an overage of $160,485
which was attributed to an excess of parking fees on an annual basis plus an unanticipated one-time
$20,000 donation of grant equipment.
(14)

CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2014

Budgetary expense within FY14 realized some savings on personnel, additional maintenance to
prepare for parking alterations, additional expenses from the balance sheet on facilities
improvements, new equipment, and a larger than transfer to the TIF Downtown Fund were also
realized. Also expended within the FY14 budget was a $331,046 entry for depreciation, which
brought the negative change in net position to $255,902 as shown on Exhibit G.
Change in Net Position
As a result of the financial activities mentioned, the Parking Garage Fund shows a stated reduction
of the $255,902 as shown on Exhibit G. Included within this reduction to fund balance is a transfer
of $272,988 made to the TIF Downtown Fund. This decrease in fund balance is due to a
redefinition of operating reserve from a flat $100,000 to a balance of 45 days cash on hand and the
completion of capital projects for which reserves had been set aside in a prior fiscal year.
Business Activities Total
The total change in net position for Business-Wide Activities for FY2014 is as follows:
Fund
Water
Sewer (Storm Water)
Parking Garage
Total

Fund Balance
$
(4,986)
$
(11,552)
$
(255,902)
$
(272,440)

GASB Compliance Note
Note that in each of these funds, depreciation is recorded as an expense and capital purchases are
recorded on the balance sheet.
Capital Assets – Government Wide
Capital assets includes the original cost (in some cases estimated) of all of our buildings, fleet, land
(parks), sidewalks, streets, equipment, and infrastructure improvements that were purchased for
over $3,000 and a useful life of 3 years or more, in compliance with the City's approved Capital
Asset Policy. It also accounts for depreciation (basically the wear and tear of use that brings the
value of the asset down) on those items.
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The following is a summary of the cost of the City’s assets:
Capital Assets at Year-End
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)
2014

Land

2013

Governmental

Business-type

T otal

Governmental

Business-type

T otal

Activities

Activities

Government

Activities

Activities

Government

$2,241,446

$647,573

$2,889,019

$2,938,576

$647,573

$3,586,149

Construction in progress

0

0

0

0

19,802

19,802

Parking garage
Buildings, distribution &
collection systems
Buildings & improvements

0

15,276,752

15,276,752

0

15,243,726

15,243,726

0

17,862,817

17,862,817

0

17,862,817

17,862,817

6,469,456

0

6,469,456

6,513,283

0

6,513,283

Equipment

2,808,816

1,328,711

4,137,527

2,697,339

1,215,976

3,913,315

33,035,096

0

33,035,096

33,035,096

0

33,035,096

(17,165,011)

(11,390,723)

(28,555,734)

(16,140,202)

(10,696,027)

(26,836,229)

$27,389,803

$23,725,130

$51,114,933

$29,044,092

$24,293,867

$53,337,959

Infrastructure
Accum. Depreciation
T otals

Land includes all holdings including parks and open spaces, parking lots, and land under and around
buildings. Construction in progress represents large projects underway, but not yet complete.
Buildings, distribution, and collection system is the water system, stormwater system, the sewer
system and the wastewater treatment facility. Buildings and improvements include all City owned
buildings including City Hall, the Fire Station, Myers Pool, the O’Brien Community Center, Public
Works Garage, a bus station, the Senior Center and any other small properties. Equipment includes
our fleet and any item we use where the cost is over $3000.00 and will last more than three years.
Infrastructure is streets, sidewalks, curbs, bridges and lighting.
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Liabilities and Long Term Debt
Liabilities in this statement refer to money that the City owes. A summary appears in the notes to
the financial statements.
Outstanding Debt at Year End:
2014

2013

Governmental

Business-type

T otal

Activities

Activities

Government

Activities

Activities

Governmental Business-type

T otal
Government

Bonds payable

$20,053,247

$946,753

$21,000,000

$22,472,605

$1,057,395

$23,530,000

Notes payable

4,098,000

0

4,098,000

4,098,000

0

4,098,000

Capital leases

116,769

0

116,769

172,262

0

172,262

Other long term debt

385,622

104,280

489,902

391,247

113,760

505,007

$24,653,638

$1,051,033

$25,704,671

$27,134,114

$1,171,155

$28,305,269

It should be noted that due to a change in estimates used to amortize the liability owed to Vermont
Works For Women the liability recorded for the period ended June 30, 2013 was understated. The
amount reported of $300,000 should have been reported as $391,247. Therefore; the Governmental
Activities Net Position appearing on the Statement of Net Position for the fiscal year 2013 was
overstated by $91,247. The adjusted net position for the year is $7,126,908. The long term liability
is now correctly stated for fiscal year 2014 at a balance of $385,622.
From the year, we can conclude that for every liability (mostly debt) we have clear sources of funds
to assure payment, including the TIF with the exception of the WCDC note. The WCDC note is
money we essentially owe a fund that the City controls and can be managed.
We have no unaddressed other post-employment benefits. The City makes payments to pension
plans when they become due and does not administer the plan. A modest contribution is set aside
for health insurance for early retirees who meet the City requirements for coverage until the
employee is eligible for a federal program.
The O’Brien Center is on solid ground currently. As with any landlord, we are dependent on our
tenants continuing to stay in the building. We have leases through 2017.
All funds have thirty days cash on hand where required.
This information allows us to conclude that the City is in a strong financial position at this point.
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Exhibit A
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2014

Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables (Net of Allowance for
Uncollectibles)
Notes Receivable
Prepaid Expenses
Internal Balances
Land Held for Resale
Capital Assets
Land
Other Capital Assets, (Net of
Accumulated Depreciation)

$

5,644,752

$

944,284
1,850,136
179,522
(2,417,924)
50,000

Total Assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Bond Refunding Costs, Net of Amortization
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll and Benefits Payable
Unearned Revenue
Escrow Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Unearned Revenue
Due within One Year
Due in More than One Year
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Prepaid Property Taxes
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted For:
Downtown Project and Debt Service
Community Development
Public Safety
Sewer Expansion
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Business-type
Activities

$

(18)

$

6,035,008

561,819
0
4,144
2,417,924
0

1,506,103
1,850,136
183,666
0
50,000

2,241,446

647,573

2,889,019

25,148,357

23,077,557

48,225,914

33,640,573

27,099,273

60,739,846

1,419,503

0

1,419,503

1,419,503

0

1,419,503

366,188
157,910
15,116
22,851
2,011,124

147,621
23,126
113,473
0
0

513,809
181,036
128,589
22,851
2,011,124

0
1,768,122
23,058,509

623,077
120,122
973,867

623,077
1,888,244
24,032,376

27,399,820

2,001,286

29,401,106

2,055

0

2,055

2,055

0

2,055

4,320,878

22,674,097

26,994,975

403,522
986,105
6,244
0
1,991,452

0
0
0
360,573
2,063,317

403,522
986,105
6,244
360,573
4,054,769

7,708,201

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

390,256

Total

$

25,097,987

$

32,806,188

Exhibit B
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Program Revenues

Expenses
Functions/Programs:
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Community Development
Interest on Long-term Debt

$

1,612,186
2,817,132
1,997,182
863,698
619,112
1,222,443

Total Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities:
Water
Sewer
Parking Garage
Total Business-Type Activities
Total Primary Government

$

Operating
Grants and
Contributions

Charges for
Services

$

234,767
353,741
50,692
136,902
825,608
0

$

22,576
190,285
61,839
106,895
319,919
0

Capital
Grants and
Contributions

$

0
155,573
140,640
0
0
0

Governmental
Activities

$

(1,354,843)
(2,117,533)
(1,744,011)
(619,901)
526,415
(1,222,443)

Business-Type
Activities

$

$

1,601,710

701,514

296,213

804,729
1,100,400
725,342

799,581
1,088,537
722,211

0
0
0

0
0
20,000

0
0
0

(5,148)
(11,863)
16,869

(5,148)
(11,863)
16,869

2,630,471

2,610,329

0

20,000

0

(142)

(142)

(142)

(6,532,458)

$

4,212,039

$

701,514

$

316,213

0

(1,354,843)
(2,117,533)
(1,744,011)
(619,901)
526,415
(1,222,443)

9,131,753

11,762,224

(6,532,316)

0
0
0
0
0
0

Total

(6,532,316)

General Revenues and Transfers:
Property Taxes
Interest and Penalties on Delinquent Taxes
Unrestricted Investment Earnings
Other Revenues
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets
Interfund Transfers
Total General Revenues and Transfers
Change in Net Position
Net Position - July 1, 2013 - As Restated

6,797,870
37,354
15,104
62,123
133,070
272,988

0
0
473
0
217
(272,988)

6,797,870
37,354
15,577
62,123
133,287
0

7,318,509

(272,298)

7,046,211

786,193

(272,440)

513,753

6,922,008

Net Position - June 30, 2014

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
(19)

(6,532,316)

7,708,201

25,370,427
$

25,097,987

32,292,435
$

32,806,188
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CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2014

Nonmajor
Funds

Major Funds
TIF
Downtown
Fund

General
Fund

Community
Development Loan
Fund

City Capital
Reserve
Fund

Other
Governmental
Funds

Total

ASSETS
Cash
Receivables (Net of Allowance
for Uncollectibles)
Land Held for Resale
Prepaid Expenses
Due from Other Funds
Notes Receivable (Net of Allowance)
TOTAL ASSETS

$

4,156,961

$

127,236
50,000
174,272
707,090
0

1,179,784

$

646,742
0
5,250
0
1,500,000

304,916

$

0
0
0
400
350,136

0

$

140,640
0
0
458,196
0

3,091

$

79,666
0
0
348,992
0

5,644,752
994,284
50,000
179,522
1,514,678
1,850,136

$

5,215,559

$

3,331,776

$

655,452

$

598,836

$

431,749

$

10,233,372

$

198,703
155,388
22,851
3,072,550
5,340

$

1,125
0
0
780,387
0

$

0
0
0
0
0

$

163,461
0
0
0
0

$

2,899
2,522
0
79,666
9,776

$

366,188
157,910
22,851
3,932,603
15,116

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll and Payroll Taxes
Escrow Payable
Due to Other Funds
Unearned Revenue
Total Liabilities

3,454,832

781,512

0

163,461

94,863

4,494,668

2,055

0

0

0

0

2,055

48,737
1,251
890
2,445

0
2,146,742
0
0

0
350,136
0
0

0
0
140,640
0

0
0
79,666
0

48,737
2,498,129
221,196
2,445

55,378

2,146,742

350,136

140,640

79,666

2,772,562

174,272
0
749,901
781,176

5,250
398,272
0
0

0
305,316
0
0

0
165,210
129,525
0

0
336,897
0
(79,677)

179,522
1,205,695
879,426
701,499

Total Fund Balances

1,705,349

403,522

305,316

294,735

257,220

2,966,142

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
$

5,215,559

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Prepaid Property Taxes
Unavailable Property Taxes, Penalties
and Interest
Unavailable Receivables
Unavailable Grant Revenue
Other
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

$

3,331,776

$

655,452

$

598,836

$

431,749

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position are Different Because:
Capital Assets Used in Governmental Activities are not Financial Resources and, Therefore, are not Reported in the Funds.

27,389,803

Other Assets are not Available to Pay for Current-Period Expenditures and, Therefore, are Reported as Deferred Inflows of Resources in the Funds.

2,770,508

Unamortized Bond Refunding Costs are not Financial Resources and, Therefore, are not Reported in the Funds.

1,419,503

Long-Term and Accrued Liabilities are not Due or Payable in the Current Period and, Therefore, are Not Reported in the Funds.
Net Position of Governmental Activities

(26,837,755)
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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Exhibit D
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
Nonmajor
Funds

Major Funds
TIF
Downtown
Fund

General
Fund
Revenue:
Property Taxes/PILOT
Charges for Services
Investment Income
Intergovernmental
Fees, Fines and Forfeits
Rent & Lease Income
Licenses & Permits
Donations
Loan Repayments
Cascade Unit Sales Profit Sharing
Other

$

Total Revenue
Expenditures:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture & Recreation
Public Buildings & Facilities
Employee Benefits
Regional Programs
Health
Community Development
Capital Outlay:
Public Safety
Public Works
Debt Service:
Bond and Note Principal
Interest and Other Charges
Total Expenditures
Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenue
Over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources/(Uses):
Proceeds of Refunding Bonds
Debt Service - Bond Principal
Sale of Land
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing
Sources/(Uses)
Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenue
and Other Financing Sources Over
Expenditures and Other
Financing/(Uses)

$

1,973,696
0
75,701
0
0
390,871
0
0
0
7,500
0

0
0
7,035
319,919
0
0
0
0
50,405
0
0

$

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
2,077
0
0
36,789

Other
Governmental
Funds
$

0
0
0
267,624
0
0
0
101,452
0
0
5,113

Total
$

6,900,068
373,635
90,104
671,958
375,006
654,276
39,712
120,767
50,405
7,500
157,992

2,447,768

377,359

38,866

374,189

9,441,423

1,114,246
1,853,381
425,888
475,991
416,775
1,018,016
220,035
8,783
29,697

20,525
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
235,560

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
333,382

0
1,446
334,195
0
39,903
0
0
0
0

0
217,597
0
0
0
0
0
0
20,473

1,134,771
2,072,424
760,083
475,991
456,678
1,018,016
220,035
8,783
619,112

0
0

0
0

0
0

94,039
3,517

143,321
0

237,360
3,517

110,000
73,342

970,000
2,359,577

0
0

164,851
53,094

0
0

1,244,851
2,486,013

5,746,154

3,585,662

333,382

691,045

381,391

10,737,634

457,087

(1,137,894)

43,977

(652,179)

(7,202)

(1,296,211)

0
0
0
248,906
(402,958)

17,000,000
(18,230,000)
824,500
272,988
(225,146)

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
391,958
0

0
0
0
11,000
(23,760)

17,000,000
(18,230,000)
824,500
924,852
(651,864)

(154,052)

(357,658)

0

391,958

(12,760)

(132,512)

(1,495,552)

43,977

(260,221)

(19,962)

(1,428,723)

1,899,074

261,339

554,956

277,182

4,394,865

1,402,314
$

$

City Capital
Reserve
Fund

6,203,241

303,035

Fund Balances - July 1, 2013
Fund Balances - June 30, 2014

4,926,372
373,635
7,368
84,415
375,006
263,405
39,712
17,238
0
0
116,090

Community
Development Loan
Fund

1,705,349

$

403,522

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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305,316

$

294,735

$

257,220

$

2,966,142

Exhibit E
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUE,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (Exhibit B) are
different because:
Net change in fund balances - total government funds (Exhibit D)

$

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities, the cost of those assets ($240,877) is allocated over their estimated useful
lives and reported as depreciation expense ($1,154,544). This is the amount by
which depreciation expense exceeded capital outlays in the current period.

(1,428,723)

(913,667)

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(i.e., sales, trade-ins, loss on disposals and donations) is to increase net position. The City
sold land with a cost basis of $697,130 for $824,500 which is the majority of this amount.

(740,622)

Governmental funds report bond refunding costs as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, these costs are recorded as deferred outflows of resources.

1,443,562

The issuance of long-term debt ($17,000,000) (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt ($19,474,851)
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however;
has any effect on net position. The amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment
of long-term debt and related items

2,474,851

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds. This amount reflects the increase
of unearned and unavailable revenue over last year.

83,165

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.
Change in net position of governmental activities (Exhibit B)

(132,373)
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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786,193

Exhibit F
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2014

Water
Fund

Sewer
Fund

Parking Garage
Fund

Total

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Receivables (Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles)
Due from Other Funds
Prepaid Expenses

$

Total Current Assets

$

805,283

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Land
Machinery and Equipment
Buildings, Distribution/Collection Systems & Improvements
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

97,358
210,623
497,302
0

292,898
345,217
817,346
172

$

0
5,979
1,103,276
3,972

$

390,256
561,819
2,417,924
4,144

1,455,633

1,113,227

3,374,143

0
292,676
5,051,106
(1,994,835)

77,604
814,121
12,844,247
(6,519,106)

569,969
189,378
15,276,752
(2,876,782)

647,573
1,296,175
33,172,105
(11,390,723)

3,348,947

7,216,866

13,159,317

23,725,130

$

4,154,230

$

8,672,499

$

14,272,544

$

27,099,273

$

55,111
10,037
0
14,851

$

83,342
7,618
0
95,791

$

9,168
5,471
113,473
0

$

147,621
23,126
113,473
110,642

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll and Benefits Payable
Unearned Revenue - Current Portion
General Obligation Bonds Payable - Current Portion
Due to Champlain Water District Current Portion

9,480

0

0

9,480

89,479

186,751

128,112

404,342

13,909
0
240,439
94,800

18,929
0
595,672
0

10,118
623,077
0
0

42,956
623,077
836,111
94,800

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

349,148

614,601

633,195

1,596,944

Total Liabilities

438,627

801,352

761,307

2,001,286

2,989,377
0
726,226

6,525,403
360,573
985,171

13,159,317
0
351,920

22,674,097
360,573
2,063,317

3,715,603

7,871,147

13,511,237

25,097,987

Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated Absences Payable
Unearned Revenue - Noncurrent Portion
General Obligation Bonds Payable - Noncurrent Portion
Due to Champlain Water District - Noncurrent Portion

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for Sewer Improvements-Expendable
Unrestricted
Total Net Position
Total Liabilities and Net Position

$

4,154,230

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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$

8,672,499

$

14,272,544

$

27,099,273

Exhibit G
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Water
Fund
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Service

$

Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses:
Salaries and Benefits
Water Purchases
Purchased Services
Repairs and Maintenance
Electricity and Fuel
Administration
Other
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income/(Loss)
Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses):
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets
Investment Income
Interest Expense
Total Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses)
Net Income Before Capital Contributions
and Transfers

799,581

$

722,211

$

2,610,329
2,610,329

234,692
327,539
5,385
53,546
8,982
38,946
13,693
107,985

369,971
0
166,328
93,656
70,582
31,741
41,698
316,948

204,332
0
12,670
92,434
35,319
25,552
23,989
331,046

808,995
327,539
184,383
239,636
114,883
96,239
79,380
755,979

790,768

1,090,924

725,342

2,607,034

8,813

(2,387)

0
162
(13,961)

0
311
(9,476)

217
0
0

217
473
(23,437)

(13,799)

(9,165)

217

(22,747)

(4,986)

(11,552)

3,715,603

(3,131)

0
0
(11,552)

3,720,589
$

$

722,211

(4,986)

Net Position - July 1, 2013

1,088,537

Total

1,088,537

0
0

Change in Net Position

Parking Garage
Fund

799,581

Capital Contributions
Transfers Out

Net Position - June 30, 2014

Sewer
Fund

7,882,699
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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7,871,147

3,295

(2,914)

(19,452)

20,000
(272,988)

20,000
(272,988)

(255,902)

(272,440)

13,767,139
$

13,511,237

25,370,427
$

25,097,987

Exhibit H
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Water
Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers and Users
Payments to Suppliers
Payments for Wages and Benefits
Paid to General Fund - Administration

$

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease/(Increase) in Due from Other Funds
Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Noncapital
Financing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets
Proceeds from Sales of Capital Assets
Transfers to Other Funds
Principal Paid
Interest Paid
Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Capital and
Related Financing Activities

Sewer
Fund

790,764
(385,768)
(232,208)
(38,946)

$

Parking Garage
Fund

1,079,969
(332,114)
(370,289)
(31,741)

$

677,119
(155,911)
(204,785)
(25,552)

Total

$

2,547,852
(873,793)
(807,282)
(96,239)

133,842

345,825

290,871

770,538

(18,832)

(203,069)

34,718

(187,183)

(18,832)

(203,069)

34,718

(187,183)

(80,236)
3,517
0
(24,330)
(13,961)

(37,704)
0
0
(95,792)
(9,476)

(53,018)
417
(272,988)
0
0

(170,958)
3,934
(272,988)
(120,122)
(23,437)

(115,010)

(142,972)

(325,589)

(583,571)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipt of Interest & Dividends

162

311

0

473

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

162

311

0

473

162

95

0

257

97,196

292,803

0

389,999

Net Increase in Cash
Cash - July 1, 2013
Cash - June 30, 2014

$

97,358

$

292,898

$

0

$

390,256

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income/(Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income/(Loss)
Depreciation
(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Prepaid Expenses
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase/(Decrease) in Accrued Payroll
Increase/(Decrease) in Unearned Revenue
Increase/(Decrease) in Compensated Absences Payable
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Schedule of Non-Cash Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Assets Acquired
Donated
Assets Disposed
Cost
Accumulated Depreciation

8,813
107,985
(8,817)
0
23,377
6,400
0
(3,916)

(2,387)
316,948
(8,568)
(140)
40,290
2,158
0
(2,476)

(3,131)
331,046
32,956
1,591
6,910
1,680
(78,048)
(2,133)

3,295
755,979
15,571
1,451
70,577
10,238
(78,048)
(8,525)

$

133,842

$

345,825

$

290,871

$

770,538

$

0

$

0

$

20,000

$

20,000

$

0
0
0

$

25,000
(24,800)
200

$

65,000
(61,283)
3,717

$
$

40,000
(36,483)
3,517

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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$

$

CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

The City of Winooski, Vermont (herein the "City") is a municipal corporation operating under a
council-manager form of government. It is governed by five (5) elected officials – a mayor and four
(4) council members. The City Council appoints a City Manager to oversee the general operations of
the City.
The City provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public safety (police, fire and
animal control), highways and streets, culture and recreation, community and economic development,
planning and zoning, water, wastewater, parking and general administrative services.
I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies adopted by the City conform to generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as applicable to governmental entities. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting
principles. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies employed in the
preparation of these financial statements.
A. The Financial Reporting Entity
This report includes all of the funds of the City. The reporting entity consists of the primary
government; organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable; and other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government
are such that their exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading
or incomplete. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of
the primary government are financially accountable. The primary government is financially
accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing body and it is able to
impose its will on that organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefits to or burdens on the primary government. The primary government may be
financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on the primary government. Based on
these criteria, there are no entities that should be combined with the financial statements of the City.
B. Basis of Presentation
The accounts of the City are organized and operated on the basis of fund accounting. A fund is an
independent fiscal and accounting entity with a separate set of self-balancing accounts which
comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund
equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are allocated
to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are spent and the
means by which spending activities are controlled.
The basic financial statements of the City include both government-wide statements and fund
financial statements. The focus of the government-wide statements is on reporting the operating
results and financial position of the City as a whole and present a longer-term view of the City’s
finances. The focus of the fund financial statements is on reporting on the operating results and
financial position of the most significant funds of the City and present a shorter-term view of how
operations were financed and what remains available for future spending.

(26)

CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities display
information about the primary government, the City. These statements include the financial activities
of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize
the double counting of activities between funds.
These statements distinguish between the
governmental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities generally are financed
through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type
activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.
The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
each function of the City’s governmental activities and for each segment of the City’s business-type
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and,
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function or program. Program revenues include (a)
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as
general revenues.
Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s
funds. Separate statements for each fund category – governmental and proprietary – are presented.
The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each
displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as
nonmajor funds.
The City reports on the following major governmental funds:
General Fund – This is the City’s main operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
of the general government except those accounted for in another fund.
TIF Downtown Fund – This debt service fund is used to account for all expenditures,
revenues, and debt service related to the tax increment financing (TIF) district.
Community Development Loan Fund – This special revenue fund accounts for all housing
grant and loan projects.
City Capital Reserve Fund – This capital project fund accounts for governmental fund capital
expenditures and related debt service.
The City reports on the following major enterprise funds:
Water Fund – This fund accounts for the operations of the Water Department.
Sewer Fund – This fund accounts for the operations of the Wastewater and Stormwater
Departments.
Parking Garage Fund – This accounts for operations of the City Parking Garage.
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CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each
party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and
investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.
C. Measurement Focus
The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement
focus. Government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus. This means that all assets and liabilities associated with the operation
of these funds (whether current or noncurrent) are included on the balance sheet (or statement of net
position). Equity (i.e., net position) is segregated into invested in capital assets, net of related debt;
restricted net position; and unrestricted net position. Operating statements present increases (i.e.,
revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in total net position.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus. This means that only current assets and current liabilities are generally reported
on their balance sheets. Their reported fund balances (net current position) are considered a measure
of available spendable resources, and are segregated into nonspendable; restricted; committed;
assigned and unassigned amounts. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e.,
revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in
net current position. Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources and uses of available
spendable resources during a period.
D. Basis of Accounting
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the
measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.
The government-wide and proprietary fund fund financial statements are reported using the accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time the
liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flow takes place. Nonexchange
transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal
value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On the accrual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue
from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.

(28)

CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

Governmental funds are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recognized when measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of the
transaction can be determined, and “available” means the amount is collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The City considers
all revenues reported in governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty
(60) days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except
for principal and interest on general long-term debt, certain compensated absences and other longterm liabilities which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated or are funded
with expendable available financial resources.
General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of
general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.
Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination of specific
cost-reimbursement grants and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there
are both restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the program. It is the City’s
policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by general
revenues. Expenditure driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures
have been incurred and other grant requirements have been met.
E. Use of Estimates
The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.
F. Future Changes in Accounting Standards
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 68, “Financial
Reporting for Pension Plans – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27”, effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2014. This new accounting and reporting standard may impact the City’s
measurement and recognition of pension liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows
of resources, and expenses/expenditures in government-wide and/or enterprise fund financial
statements. The requirements of this statement may require restating of beginning net position. The
City is currently not planning to early implement this Statement and has made no estimation of the
effect this Statement will have in the financial statements.
G. New Pronouncements
Effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014, the City has implemented Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 65 “Items Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities”. GASB 65 reclassifies certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities
as deferred inflows and outflows. This affects the City’s treatment of bond refinancing costs as
described in Note IV.E.
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CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014
H. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and
Equity
1. Cash
Cash balances of most City funds are deposited with and invested by the City Treasurer. The City
considers all short-term investments of ninety (90) days or less to be cash equivalents.
2. Investments
The City invests its operating and capital reserve funds as allowed by State Statute and in compliance
with the City’s own approved investment policy. Investment funds are collatorized by the investment
institution or brokerage firm to ensure that all City funds and revenues are secure in accordance with
applicable laws and policies. Investments with readily determinable fair values are reported at fair
value on the balance sheet. Unrealized gains and losses are reported within applicable financial
statements and included in the appropriate revenue category. The City’s investment program
encompasses all classes of revenues and funds and is reviewed on an ongoing basis to determine
compliance and accountability.
3. Receivables
Receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts for the estimated losses that
will be incurred in the collection of the receivables. The estimated losses are based on the judgment
of management and a review of the current status of existing receivables.
4. Internal Balances
Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements that are outstanding
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “Advances to/from Other Funds”. Any residual
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in
the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”. Cash balances deposited and
invested by the Treasurer in a combined cash account are reported as “Due to/from Other Funds”.
Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund reserve
account (nonspendable fund balance) in the applicable funds to indicate that they are not available for
appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.
5. Capital Assets
Capital assets are reported at actual cost or estimated historical cost based on appraisals or deflated
current replacement cost if purchased or constructed. Contributed assets are recorded at their
estimated fair value at the time received. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are
capitalized as constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase for proprietary fund capital
assets is reflected in the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of any interest earned on the
invested proceeds during the same period. The City has capitalized $9,712 of interest in the
proprietary funds in prior fiscal years. Interest is not capitalized during the construction phase of
capital assets used in governmental activities. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not
add to the value of the asset or materially extend the assets’ lives are not capitalized. The City has
elected to report major general infrastructure assets retroactively.
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Capital assets reported in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are
depreciated in order that the cost of these assets will be charged to expenses over their estimated
service lives, generally using the straight-line method of calculating depreciation.
Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values above which asset acquisitions are added to the capital
asset accounts) and estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows:

Capitalization
Threshold
Land
Buildings and Building Improvements
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment
Roads, Bridges, and Sidewalks
Water and Wastewater Distribution and
and Collection Systems
Parking Garage

$

Estimated
Service Life

10,000
20,000
3,000
20,000

Not Depreciated
10-75 Years
3-20 Years
20-75 Years

20,000
20,000

20-75 Years
50 Years

Capital assets are not reported in the governmental fund financial statements. Capital outlays in these
funds are recorded as expenditures in the year they are acquired.
6. Deferred Inflows/Deferred Outflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, “deferred outflows of
resources”, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditures) until then. The City has one type of
item which arises under the accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category.
Accordingly, the item bond refunding costs, net of amortization, is reported in the statement of net
position. This amount is deferred and recognized as an outflow of resources over the life of the new
debt.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, “deferred inflows of
resources”, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has five types of items
which arise under the modified accrual basis of accounting and one type which arises under the
accrual basis of accounting that qualify for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item,
“unavailable revenue”, is reported in the statement of net position and governmental funds balance
sheet. The statement of net position reports unavailable revenues from one source; prepaid property
taxes. The governmental funds balance sheet reports unavailable revenues from five sources; prepaid
property taxes, unavailable property taxes, unavailable notes receivable, unavailable grants revenue
and unavailable other receivables. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of
resources in the period that the amounts become available
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7. Compensated Absences
It is the policy of the City of Winooski to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused
vacation, comp-time and sick leave benefits. The entire value of vacation and comp-time leave is
paid upon termination. Sick leave has no cash value upon separation from the City. No expenditure
is reported for these amounts until paid, except in the Enterprise Funds.
8. Long-term Liabilities
Long-term liabilities include bonds, notes and capital leases payable and other obligations such as
compensated absences. Long-term liabilities are reported in the government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements. Governmental fund financial statements do not include any long-term
liabilities as those funds use the current financial resources measurement focus and only include
current liabilities on their balance sheets.
9. Fund Equity
Fund Balances and Net Position are classified based upon any restrictions that have been placed on
those balances or any tentative plans management may have made for those balances. Restrictions of
net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund type financial statements represent amounts
that cannot be appropriated or are legally restricted for a specific purpose by a grant, contract, or
other binding agreement. Fund Balances of governmental funds are classified as nonspendable (not
in spendable form or legally required to remain intact); restricted (constraints on the use of resources
are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, or donors, or imposed by law through enabling
legislation); committed (constraints on the use of resources are imposed by formal action of the
voters); assigned (reflecting the City Council’s intended use of the resources); and unassigned.
II. EXPLANATION OF DIFFERENCES BETWEEN GOVERNMENTAL FUND AND
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS
Governmental Fund financial statements are presented using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting, whereas government-wide financial
statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. These differences in the measurement focus and basis of accounting lead to differences
between the governmental fund financial statements and the government-wide financial statements as
follows.
Long-term revenue differences arise because governmental funds report revenues only when they are
considered “available,” whereas government-wide statements report revenues when they are earned.
Long-term expense differences arise because governmental funds report operating expenses
(including interest) using the modified accrual basis of accounting, whereas government-wide
statements report expenses using the accrual basis of accounting.
Capital-related differences arise because governmental funds report capital outlays as current period
expenditures, whereas government-wide statements report depreciation as an expense. Further,
governmental funds report the proceeds from the sale of capital assets as another financing source,
whereas government-wide statements report the gain or loss from the sale of capital assets as revenue
or expense.
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Long-term debt transaction differences arise because governmental funds report long-term debt
proceeds as other financing sources and principal payments as expenditures, whereas governmentwide statements report those transactions as increases and decreases in liabilities, respectively.
III. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Budgetary Information
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:
1.

On or before December 15, the City Manager submits to the City Council a
proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July
1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of
financing them.

2.

Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

3.

The City Council adopts the budget.

4.

The budget is presented to the voters for approval at the March annual City
meeting.

5.

The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within each
function. Any revisions that alter the total budgeted amounts of any function
must be approved by the City Council. There were no revisions of this nature
in 2014.

B. Restatement of Net Position
Due to a change in estimate used to amortize the liability owed to Vermont Works For Women
(VWFW) it was determined that the liability recorded as of June 30, 2013 was understated. The
amount reported of $300,000 should have been reported as $391,247.
Also, accrued interest on the $3,000,000 Pecor and $1,098,000 Winooski Community Development
notes payable was understated by $204,900 at June 30, 2013. This was determined when these notes
were renegotiated in 2014. See Note IV.H. for more details.
These items affect beginning Governmental Activities Net Position as follows:
July 1, 2013 – As Reported
VWFW Restatement
Accrued Interest
July 1, 2013 – As Restated

$7,218,155
(91,247)
(204,900)
$6,922,008

The effect on the Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2013 was that liabilities were understated
and net position was overstated by $296,417. The effect on the Statement of Activities was
immaterial.
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IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
A. Cash
The City’s cash as of June 30, 2014 consisted of the following:
Cash:
Cash on Hand
Cash with Financial Institutions
Total Cash

$

4,231
6,030,777

$

6,035,008

Custodial Credit Risk
The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for
investments is the risk that, in the event of failure of the counter-party to a transaction (e.g. brokerdealer), a government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities
that are in possession of another party. The City does not have any policy to limit the exposure to
custodial credit risk. The following table shows the custodial credit risk of the City’s deposits.
Book
Balance
FDIC/SIPC Insured
Insured by Letter of Credit Issued by
Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburg
Uninsured, Uncollateralized

$

1,000,000

Bank
Balance
$

400,000
4,630,777

Total Cash Deposits

$

6,030,777

1,000,000
400,000
4,624,398

$

6,024,398

The uninsured, uncollateralized amount includes $4,559,884 of the book balance and $4,553,500 of
the bank balance which could be offset by the Downtown Project bonds as described in Note IV.H.
The difference between the book and the bank balance is due to reconciling items such as deposits in
transit and outstanding checks.
Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its
fair value to changes in market interest rates. The City does not have any policy to limit the exposure
to interest rate risk. The City has no assets with exposure to interest rate risk.
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B. Receivables
Receivables at June 30, 2014, as reported in the statement of net position, net of applicable
allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows.
Governmental
Activity
Delinquent Taxes
$
Penalties and Interest
Billed Services
Unbilled Services
Grants
Aid in Expansion Fees
Parking Tickets
Other
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
$

97,405 $
94,258
710,811
228,703
100,780
18,405
(256,078)
994,284 $

Business-type
Activity
- $
31,942
460,215
128,946
(59,284)
561,819 $

Total
97,405
94,258
742,753
460,215
228,703
128,946
100,780
18,405
(315,362)
1,556,103

C. Loans and Notes Receivable
Loans, with a balance of $96,363, were issued by the City's H.I.P. Program to qualifying residents for
improvements to property at interest rates ranging from three (3%) to nine (9%) percent. These loans
will be paid back in one (1) to twenty (20) years and re-loaned to new qualifying applicants. The
City believes the loans are collectible as all are being repaid.
Loans, with a balance of $210,800, were issued to Champlain Housing Trust for cooperative housing
at 0% interest and to be repaid upon sale of the projects and are secured by mortgages. The City does
not believe these loans are collectible so an allowance for doubtful accounts of $210,800 has been
recorded.
The City has a $1,500,000 note receivable from HK Central Block Limited Partnership. This note is
secured by real estate and is to assist in building affordable housing in Winooski. The source of the
money for the loan was from a Federal grant. Interest is at 0% and the note is due December 31,
2035. The City believes the loan is collectible and has discounted it to present value of $253,772 at
June 30, 2014 using a 5% discount rate.
The City has a $740,000 note receivable from Canal Street Housing Limited Partnership. The note is
secured by real estate and was loaned to provide affordable veterans housing. The source of the funds
was a Federal grant. Interest is at 0% and the note is due April 2, 2040. If all terms are met by the
borrower, this loan will likely be forgiven at the due date. Therefore, an allowance for doubtful
accounts of $740,000 has been recorded.
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The City has a $370,000 note receivable from City Neighborhoods HLP. The City loaned the funds
for the acquisition and rehabilitation of ten (10) affordable housing units. The source of the money
for the loan was from a Federal grant. Interest is at 0% and the note is due in 2042. If all terms are
met by the borrower, this loan will likely be forgiven at the due date. Therefore, an allowance for
doubtful accounts of $370,000 has been recorded.
The City has a $764,500 note receivable from Champlain Housing Trust. The City loaned the funds
to fund the Champlain Housing Loan Funds and allow the organization to continue providing
Housing Rehabilitation and Counseling and Advocacy services. The source of the money for the loan
was from a Federal grant. Interest is at 0% and the note is due in 2042. If all terms are met by the
borrower, this loan will likely be forgiven at the due date. Therefore, an allowance for doubtful
accounts of $764,500 has been recorded.
The City has a $1,500,000 note receivable from HK Central Block Limited Partnership due from the
sale of land in the Downtown District known as Lot 5. The sale price was $2,500,000 and the City
received $500,000 at closing. The City received an additional $500,000 payment on this note on June
16, 2009. The terms of the note require the remaining $1,500,000 to be repaid over twenty (20) years
beginning in 2020. Until then, there are only annual payments of interest at 5%. Interest received in
2014 amounted to $75,000. The note is secured by a second mortgage on the entire Barlow Square
condominium. The City believes this loan is collectible.
D. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 was as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:
Land
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated

$

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Buildings and Building Improvements
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Buildings and Building Improvements
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure
Totals
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net

2,938,576 $
2,938,576

6,513,283
2,697,339
33,035,096
42,245,718

$

1,847,376
1,838,360
12,454,466
16,140,202
26,105,516
29,044,092 $
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Increases

0 $
0

0
240,877
0
240,877
205,414
190,280
758,850
1,154,544
(913,667)
(913,667) $

Decreases

697,130 $
697,130

Ending
Balance

2,241,446
2,241,446

43,827
129,400
0
173,227

6,469,456
2,808,816
33,035,096
42,313,368

13,148
116,587
0
129,735
43,492
740,622 $

2,039,642
1,912,053
13,213,316
17,165,011
25,148,357
27,389,803
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Beginning
Balance
Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated
Land
Construction In Progress
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated

$

Increases

647,573 $
19,802
667,375

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Parking Garage
Buildings, Distribution and Collection
Systems & Improvements
Machinery & Equipment
Totals
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Parking Garage
Buildings, Distribution and Collection
Systems & Improvements
Machinery & Equipment

-

Ending
Balance

Decreases

$

$
19,802
19,802

647,573
647,573

15,243,726

58,026

25,000

15,276,752

17,862,817
1,215,976
34,322,519

152,735
210,761

40,000
65,000

17,862,817
1,328,711
34,468,280

2,474,536

315,348

24,800

7,713,548
507,943

343,275
97,356

36,483

2,765,084
8,056,823
568,816

Totals

10,696,027

755,979

61,283

11,390,723

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated

23,626,492

(545,218)

3,717

23,077,557

24,293,867 $

(545,218) $

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets Net

23,519 $

23,725,130

Depreciation was charged as follows:
Governmental Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Total Depreciation
Expense Governmental

$

12,376
98,613
823,202
220,353

$ 1,154,544

Business-Type Activities:
Water
$
Sewer
Parking

107,985
316,948
331,046

Total Depreciation
Expense - BusinessType Activities
$

755,979

Assets with a cost of $40,000 and accumulated depreciation of $36,483 were transferred from the
Water Fund to the Public Works Department. This is a decrease in Business-Type Activities and an
increase in Governmental Activities.
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E. Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows of resources in Governmental Activities consists of unamortized bond refunding
costs in the amount of $1,419,503. In 2014, the City currently refunded certain bonds (see Note
IV.H.) at a cost of $1,443,562. These costs are recorded as expenditures in the Governmental funds
(TIF Downtown Fund) but for the government wide statements are deferred and amortized. They are
being amortized over the life of the new debt, which is 120 months. Amortization in 2014 was
$24,059.
F. Interfund Balances and Activity
The composition of interfund balances at June 30, 2014 is as follows:

Interfund
Receivables
General Fund
TIF Downtown Fund
Community Development Loan Fund
City Capital Reserve Fund
Community Center Fund
Justice Center Fund
Asset Forfeitures Fund
JAG Fund
Water Fund
Sewer Fund
Parking Garage Fund
Total

$

$

707,090 $
0
400
458,196
330,708
14,040
4,244
0
497,302
817,347
1,103,276
3,932,603 $

Interfund
Payables
3,072,550
780,387
0
0
0
0
0
79,666
0
0
0
3,932,603

Interfund transfers during the year ended June 30, 2014 were as follows:
General Fund
General Fund
TIF Downtown Fund
Community Center Fund
Parking Garage Fund

City Capital Reserve Fund $
Justice Center Fund
General Fund
General Fund
TIF Downtown Fund

391,958
11,000
225,146
23,760
272,988

$

924,852

Capital Plan
Local match for Justice Center Grant
To offset additional operating costs due to TIF development
To cover YMCA rental credit
Contribution toward debt owed per bond covenant
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G. Unearned Revenue and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenue in the Governmental Activities and the Governmental Funds consists of $10,666 of
grant revenue received in advance and $4,450 of various program fees received in advance. The
revenue will be recognized as expenses are incurred on the grants and services are provided. Total
unearned revenue in the Governmental Activities and the Governmental Funds is $15,116.
Unearned revenue in the Business-Type Activities and the Parking Garage Fund consists of $736,550
of parking fees received in advance of which $113,473 will be recognized in fiscal year 2015. The
revenue will be recognized as parking and other services are provided.
Deferred inflows of resources in the General Fund consists of $2,055 of prepaid property taxes as
well as $48,737 of delinquent property taxes, penalties and interest on those taxes and $4,586 in other
receivables that were not collected within sixty (60) days after year-end as these would not be
available to liquidate current liabilities. Total deferred inflows of resources in the General Fund are
$55,378.
Deferred inflows of resources in the TIF Downtown Fund consists of $2,146,742 of receivables not
collected within sixty (60) days after year-end as these would not be available to liquidate current
liabilities.
Deferred inflows of resources in the Community Development Loan Fund consists of $350,136 in
notes receivable not collected with sixty (60) days after year-end as these would not be available to
liquidate current liabilities.
Deferred inflows of resources in the City Capital Reserve Fund consists of $140,640 of grants
receivable not collected within sixty (60) days after year-end as these would not be available to
liquidate current liabilities.
Deferred inflows of resources in the Other Governmental Funds consists of $79,666 of grants
receivable not collected within sixty (60) days after year-end as these would not be available to
liquidate current liabilities.
H. Long-term Liabilities
General Obligation Bonds – The City issues general obligation bonds to provide resources for the
acquisition and construction of major capital facilities and to refund prior issues. General obligation
bonds have been issued for both governmental and proprietary activities. Bonds are reported in
governmental activities if the debt is expected to be repaid from governmental fund revenues and in
business-type activities if the debt is expected to be repaid from proprietary fund revenues. All of the
City’s debt that will be repaid from the revenues of the Tax Increment Financing District are reported
in governmental activities even though Water, Sewer and Parking Garage Fund capital assets were
financed with this debt and all net parking revenue is collateral for the outstanding letter of credit
securing the debt. The amount of the future net parking revenue is not determinable.
General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. New
bonds generally are issued as 10 to 20 year bonds.
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No-Interest Revolving Loans - The State of Vermont offers a number of no-interest revolving loan
programs to utilize for predetermined purposes. The City has borrowed money from the Vermont
Special Environmental Revolving Fund for sewer projects.
Other Notes Payable - The City has other notes payable to finance various capital projects and
purchases through local banks.
Capital Lease Obligations - The City enters into lease agreements as the lessee for the purpose of
financing the acquisition of major pieces of equipment. These lease agreements qualify as capital
lease obligations for accounting purposes (even though they may include clauses that allow for
cancellation of the lease in the event the City does not appropriate funds in future years) and,
therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the
inception of the leases. Leases are reported in governmental activities if the debt is expected to be
repaid from governmental fund revenue and in the business-type activities if the debt is expected to
be repaid from proprietary fund revenue.
Compensated Absences - It is the policy of the City to permit employees to accumulate vacation,
comp-time and sick leave time, the value of which will be paid at their current rate of pay upon
retirement, termination or death as discussed in Note I.F.7. The accrual for compensated absences,
based on current rates, is recorded in the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund
financial statements.
Other Post Employment Benefits - The City offers retired employees single coverage health insurance
provided the employee has reached age 62 and their years of service plus their age equals 100. The
benefit ends at age 65. The estimated liability is based on one retiree already receiving benefits and
one employee who will likely receive benefits in the near future. The amount due within one year is
the City’s expected liability for 2015 for two individuals, one currently receiving benefits and the
other anticipated to receive benefits in the next five years.
Long-term liabilities outstanding as of June 30, 2014 were as follows.
Beginning
Balance

Deletions

Ending
Balance

0

$ 5,000

$ 15,000

0

30,000

0

Additions

Governmental Activities:
Bond Payable – Vermont Municipal
Bond Bank, Street Reconstruction,
$10,000 Due Annually Until December,
2012 and $5,000 Due Annually Until
December, 2016, 5.1% Interest Paid
Semi-Annually June 1 and December 1
Bond Payable – Vermont Municipal
Bond Bank, Fire Truck, $30,000 Due
Annually December 1 through 2013,
4.57% Interest Paid Semi-Annually
June 1 and December 1

$ 20,000

30,000
(40)
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Beginning
Balance
Lease Payable – Key Bank, Dump Truck
with Plow and Sidewalk Plow, Interest at
3.39%, $34,758 of Principal and Interest
Due Annually January 10 Through 2016 $

97,585

Lease Payable – Key Bank, Dump Truck
with Plow, Interest at 3.49%, $26,649 of
Principal and Interest Due Annually
July 15 Through 2015

Additions

0

$ 31,450

74,677

0

24,043

50,634

0

17,000,000

0

17,000,000

Subordinate Special Obligation Tax
Increment Financing Note, Series 2004B,
Payable to Winooski Community
Development Trust (the Mayor and City
Council are Trustees of the Trust), Downtown
Land Purchase, Interest at 6.0% Beginning
July 1, 2005, Payable Semi-Annually,
However, the City has the Option not to
Pay the Interest Payments, and has Executed
this Option, but Interest shall Accrue without
Additional Interest, Principal and Interest
Payments of $70,434 Due Semi-Annually
Beginning July 1, 2014 through July 1, 2024.
Unpaid Accrued Interest is Estimated to be
$559,980 at June 30, 2014. Additional Terms
Apply for Failure to Repay the Note. The
Payment of this Note is Subordinate to the
Payment in Full of the Special
Obligation Refunding Bonds and the Pecor
Note. This Note will be Repaid from the
Revenues of the Tax Increment
Financing District
1,098,000

0

0

1,098,000

Special Obligation Refunding Bonds –
Downtown Project, Series 2014A, Payable
To TD Bank, N.A., Monthly payments
of $163,695 beginning July 1, 2014
Inclusive of Interest and Principal
through 2024, Interest at 2.79%. This Bond
will be Repaid from the Revenues of the
Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District
and the Net Parking Revenue.
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$

Ending
Balance

Deletions

$

66,135
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Beginning
Balance
Variable Rate Special Obligation
Refunding Bonds – Downtown Project,
Principal Payments Beginning with
a $2,000,000 Payment in May, 2009 with
a Reprieve in Fiscal Year 2010, and then
Continuing Annually, Ranging from
$850,000 to $4,340,000 and Ending
May, 2024. Interest is Variable, however,
the City has entered into an Interest Rate
Swap Agreement with T.D. Bank, N.A.
to Limit Substantially all of the Interest
to 3.8%. Beginning June, 2006, Monthly
Interest Payments are Paid to the Bond
Trustee with an Interest Rate Swap
Payment to T.D. Bank, N.A., Which is
Calculated Based on the Fixed Rate
of 3.8% less 68% of the Average LIBOR
Rate for the Month. Also payable to
T.D. Bank, N.A. is a Quarterly Fee Equal
to 80 Basis Points for a Letter of Credit
Which is Security for the Bonds and a
Quarterly Remarketing Fee to the
Remarketing Agent Equal to 10 Basis
Points, This Note will be Repaid from
the Revenues of the Tax Increment
Financing (TIF) District
$19,200,000
Subordinate Special Obligation Tax
Increment Financing Note, Series
2004A, Payable to Raymond Pecor, III
and Stacey Pecor, Downtown Land
Purchase, Interest at 6.0% Beginning
July 1, 2005, Payable Semi-Annually,
City has the Option not to Pay the
Interest Payments, and has Executed
this Option, but Interest shall Accrue
Without Additional Interest,
Principal and Interest Payments of
$201,647 Due Semi-Annually
Beginning July 1, 2014 through
July 1, 2024. Unpaid Accrued Interest
is estimated to be $1,350,000 at
June 30, 2014. Additional Terms
Apply for Failure to Repay. Note is
Subordinate to the Special Obligation
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$

Deletions

0

$19,200,000

Ending
Balance

$

0
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Beginning
Balance

Refunding Bonds. This Note
will be Repaid from the
Revenues of the Tax Increment
Financing District
Bond Payable – Vermont Municipal
Bond Bank, Street Reconstruction,
$74,358 Due Annually on November 15
Through 2031, Interest Ranging from
.804% to 4.664% Paid Semi-Annually
on May 15 and November 15

$ 3,000,000

Additions

$

0 $

Ending
Balance

Deletions

0 $ 3,000,000

1,352,605

0

74,358

1,278,247

Bond Payable – Vermont Municipal
Bond Bank, Community Center,
$110,000 Due Annually on November 15
through 2029, Interest Ranging from
1.31% to 5.23% Paid Semi-Annually
on May 15 and November 15
1,870,000

0

110,000

1,760,000

Total Governmental
Long-Term Debt

$26,742,867

$17,000,000 $19,474,851 $24,268,016

The $17,000,000 Downtown Project bonds include certain financial and other covenants.
The City also has another long-term liability to Vermont Works for Women (VWFW) which is a
tenant in the City’s Community Center. The City has agreed to pay for VWFW’s cost incurred to fit
up its space by reducing VWFW’s rent by 63.82%. This equated to $7,500 in rent reduction applied
against the liability in 2014. If VWFW were to move out of the space, the remaining balance of
$514,162, less a penalty of 25%, would leave $385,622 be payable to VWFW.
In 2014, the City currently refunded its Variable Rate Special Obligation Refunding Bonds in the
amount of $18,230,000 by using debt service reserve funds on hand and a new Special Obligation
Refunding Bond in the amount of $17,000,000. Costs to refund the bonds were $1,443,562 and are
being accounted for as Deferred Outflows of Resources (see Note IV.E.). This resulted in a total
cash flow out of $2,673,562 in 2014, but will result in $4,317,377 less cash flows out over the
remaining life of the debt, which matures in 2024. On a net present value basis using the debt’s
effective interest rate, the decrease in cash flows out due to the refunding are $4,200,191, resulting in
an economic gain of $1,526,629.
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Business-Type Activities
Beginning
Balance

Additions

Ending
Balance

Deletions

Sewer Fund:
Bond Payable – State of Vermont Special
Environmental Revolving Fund,
Pollution Aeration Improvements,
$20,000 Due Annually, 0% Interest,
Due December 1, 2016
$

80,000

$

0

$ 20,000

$

60,000

Bond Payable – State of Vermont
Special Environmental Revolving
Fund, 0% Interest, $60,000 Due
Annually on January 1 through 2020

420,000

0

60,000

360,000

Bond Payable – Vermont Municipal
Bond Bank, Street Reconstruction,
$15,791 Due Annually on November 15
Through 2031, Interest Ranging from
.804% to 4.664% Paid Semi-Annually
on May 15 and November 15

287,255

0

15,791

271,464

787,255

0

95,791

691,464

Bond Payable – Vermont Municipal
Bond Bank, Street Reconstruction,
$14,851 Due Annually on November 15
Through 2031, Interest Ranging from
.804% to 4.664% Paid Semi-Annually
on May 15 and November 15

270,140

0

14,851

255,289

Other Liability – Champlain Water
District, Water Allocation, $9,480 Due
Annually on December 1 through 2024,
Interest at 4.44% Paid Semi-Annually on
December 1 and June 1

113,760

0

9,480

104,280

383,900

0

24,331

359,569

0

$120,122

$1,051,033

Total Sewer Fund
Water Fund:

Total Water Fund
Total Business-Type Activities

$ 1,171,155
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Changes in all long-term liabilities during the year were as follows:

Governmental Activities
Bonds Payable
Notes Payable
Capital Leases Payable
Other Long-Term Liability - VWFW
Compensated Absences
Other Post Employment Benefit
Total Governmental Activities
Long Term Liabilities

Beginning
Balance

Additions

$

22,472,605 $
4,098,000
172,262
391,247
191,074
23,912

17,000,000 $
0
0
0
0
2,771

19,419,358 $
0
55,493
5,625
44,764
0

20,053,247 $
4,098,000
116,769
385,622
146,310
26,683

1,698,597
0
57,399
7,172
0
4,954

$

27,349,100 $

17,002,771 $

19,525,240 $

24,826,631 $

1,768,122

946,753
104,280
42,956

110,642
9,480
0

1,093,989 $

120,122

Business-type Activities
Bonds Payable
Due to Champlain Water District
Compensated Absences
Total Business-type Activities
Long-Term Liabilities

$

Ending
Balance

Reductions

1,057,395
113,760
51,481

0
0
0

110,642
9,480
8,525

1,222,636 $

0$

128,647 $

Due Within
One Year

Compensated Absences and the other post employment benefit are paid by the applicable fund where
the employee is charged.
Maturities of notes, bonds and capital leases payable based on the City’s intentions are as follows:
Year Ending
June 30

Governmental Activities
Principal
Interest

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020-2024
2025-2029
2030-2034

$

1,755,996
1,797,077
1,781,562
1,821,657
1,868,027
14,017,161
904,085
322,451

Total

$ 24,268,016

$

839,935
771,111
750,263
699,774
371,734
5,089,797
180,005
17,443

$ 8,720,062
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Business-Type Activities
Principal
Interest
$

120,122
118,663
118,663
98,663
98,663
253,315
155,395
87,549

$

18,030
17,590
17,064
16,421
15,662
64,091
35,711
6,059

$ 1,051,033

$

190,628
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I. Net Position/Fund Balances
GASB Statement No. 34, as amended by GASB Statement No. 54, requires fund balances reported on
the governmental fund balance sheet to be classified using a hierarchy based primarily on the extent
to which a government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in
those funds can be spent.
Governmental fund balances are to be classified as: nonspendable (not in spendable form or legally
required to remain intact); restricted (constraints on the use of resources are either externally imposed
by creditors, grantors or donors, or imposed by law through enabling legislation); committed
(constraints on the use of resources are imposed by formal action of the voters); assigned (reflecting
the City Council’s intended use of the resources); and unassigned.
Special Revenue Funds are created only to report a revenue source (or sources) that is restricted or
committed to a specified purpose, and that the revenue source should constitute a substantial portion
of the resources reported in that fund. Special Revenue Funds cannot be used to accumulate funds
that are not restricted or committed. These amounts will have to be reflected in the General Fund.
Amounts constrained to stabilization will be reported as restricted or committed fund balance in the
General Fund if they meet the other criteria for those classifications. However, stabilization is
regarded as a specified purpose only if the circumstances or conditions that signal the need for
stabilization (a) are identified in sufficient detail and (b) are not expected to occur routinely. The
City does not have any stabilization arrangements.
Some governments create stabilization-like arrangements by establishing formal minimum fund
balance policies. The City does not have any minimum fund balance polices.
When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted amounts are
available, it is the City’s policy to first consider restricted amounts to have been spent, followed by
committed, assigned, and finally unassigned amounts.
The purpose for each major Special Revenue Fund, including which specific revenues and other
resources are authorized to be reported in each, are described in the following section.
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The restricted net position of the City as of June 30, 2014 consisted of the following:
Governmental Activities:
Restricted for Downtown Project and Debt Service
by Bond Agreement and TIF Legislation
Restricted for Community Development by Grant
Agreements and Donations
Restricted for Public Safety by Grant Agreements
and Regulation
Total Governmental Activities

$

403,522
986,105
6,244

$ 1,395,871

Business-Type Activities:
Restricted for Sewer Expansion by Ordinance

$ 360,573

The fund balances of the following funds are nonspendable as follows:
Major Funds
General Fund:
Nonspendable Prepaid Expenses

$ 174,272

TIF Downtown Fund:
Nonspendable Prepaid Expenses

5,250

Total Nonspendable Fund Balances

$ 179,522

The fund balances in the following funds are restricted as follows:
Major Funds
TIF Downtown:
Downtown Project and Debt Service by
Bond Agreement and TIF Legislation

$ 398,272

Community Development Fund:
Restricted for Community Development by
Grant Agreements
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City Capital Reserve Fund:
Restricted for Capital Projects by Unspent
Debt Proceeds
Total Major Funds

$

165,210
868,798

Non-Major Funds:
Community Center Fund:
Restricted for Community Development by
Donations (Source of Revenue is Donations)
Asset Forfeitures Fund:
Restricted for Public Safety by Regulation
(Source of Revenue is Asset Seizures)

330,653

6,244

Total Non-Major funds

336,897

Total Restricted Fund Balances

$1,205,695

The fund balances in the following funds are assigned as follows:
Major Funds
General Fund:
Assigned for Community Development Reserve
Assigned for City Operating Reserve
Assigned for Fire/Hazmat
Assigned for Community Service Programs
Assigned for Other Post Employment Benefits
Total General Fund

$222,844
371,994
12,880
115,500
26,683
749,901

City Capital Reserve Fund:
Assigned for Capital Projects

129,525

Total Assigned Fund Balances

$879,426

The fund deficit in the JAG Fund of $79,666 will be funded as grant receivables are collected.
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V. OTHER INFORMATION
A. Retirement Plans
The Fire Chief, the Zoning Administrator and certain other administrators are covered under the State
of Vermont Municipal Employees’ Retirement Plan (VMERS) Group C. Employees in Group C
contribute 9.625% of their gross salary and the City contributes 6.875%. Police officers are covered
under VMERS Group D. Employees in Group D contribute 11% of their gross salary and the City
contributes 9.5%. Public works employees are covered under VMERS Group B. Employees in
Group B contribute 4.75% and the City contributes 5.375%. Dispatchers are covered under Group
DC, a defined contribution plan. Employees in Group DC contribute 5% of their gross salary and the
City contributes 5.125%. The City pays all costs accrued each year for the plans. The premise of
Plans B, C and D is to provide a retirement plan covering municipal employees at a uniform statewide contribution rate based upon an actuarial valuation of all State of Vermont municipal
employees. Activity in these plans is done in the aggregate, not by municipality. The net position
available for benefits as well as the present value of vested and nonvested plan benefits by
municipality are not available. The premise of Plan DC is to allow employees to have a choice in
investing their retirement assets. Each employee will receive the value of their account upon
retirement. The City’s total payroll was $3,371,455 while its covered payroll for these retirement
plans was $1,638,206. Pension expense for these plans for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and
2012 was $137,727, $142,245 and $137,847, respectively.
The City also maintains a Section 401(a) defined contribution pension plan for all other employees
not included in VMERS. Eligible employees must be twenty-one (21) years of age and work a
minimum of 1,000 hours per year. This Plan provides retirement and survivor benefits. Under the
plan specifications, a member may retire after reaching the age of 65 with no provision for early
retirement. Benefits are not vested until an employee has five (5) years of service at which time they
become 100% vested. Upon retirement, members are entitled to a lump sum distribution only. The
City contributes 5% for all participating employees of gross salary less amounts deferred under a
Section 125 cafeteria plan. The City will match contributions to the plan up to 6%. The City’s total
payroll for the year was $3,371,455 while its covered payroll for this retirement plan was $1,101,748.
Pension expense for this plan for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $59,232,
$62,950 and $64,675, respectively
The City also maintains a Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan for its employees with a plan
year of January 1 through December 31. The 457 Plan covers substantially all employees. The Plan
is administered by Pension Works, Inc. with investments held at Manulife. The City also offers its
employees a Deferred Compensation Plan through the International City/County Management
Association (ICMA) Retirement Corporation in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.
The Plans permit employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Deferred
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, or death. The City has no
liability for losses under the plans, but does have the duty of due care that would be required of an
ordinary prudent investor. The City does not report these assets on their financial statements as they
are held in trust for the benefit of the employees.
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B. Property Taxes
Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of April 1. Taxes are levied on July 1 and
are payable in four (4) installments due August 15, November 15, February 15, and May 15. The
City bills and collects its own property taxes as well as education taxes for the State of Vermont.
City property tax revenue is recognized when levied to the extent it is collected within sixty (60) days
after year-end.
The tax rate for fiscal year 2014 is as follows:
Residential
Education
Local Agreement Rate
City
Total

Non-Residential

$1.2395
.0012
.9950

$1.4588
.0012
.9950

$2.2357

$2.4550

C. Risk Management
The City of Winooski is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City of
Winooski maintains insurance coverage through the Vermont League of Cities and Towns Property
and Casualty Intermunicipal Fund, Inc., covering each of those risks of loss. Management believes
such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the City of Winooski.
Settled claims have not exceeded this coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. The City must
remain a member for a minimum of one year and may withdraw from the Fund after that time by
giving sixty days notice. Fund underwriting and ratesetting policies have been established after
consultation with actuaries. Fund members are subject to a supplemental assessment in the event of
deficiencies. If the assets of the Fund were to be exhausted, members would be responsible for the
Fund’s liabilities.
The City of Winooski has entered into an insurance contract for health benefits with VACE Insurance
effective January 1, 2013. This is a high deductible plan that provides health insurance coverage to
qualified City employees. Qualified employees are all full-time union and non-union employees.
Annual deductibles range from $1,500 to $5,000 and maximum out of pocket expenses range from
$2,500 to $7,000. The City has exposure to the extent of employee deductibles. The City provides
first dollar coverage to its qualified employees through the use of a health reimbursement account.
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Effective January 1, 2014, the City of Winooski, as a small group per the State of Vermont (50 and
under full time employees), was mandated to buy insurance for health benefits through Vermont
Health Connect (VHC). The City makes 3 VHC plans available to qualified employees:
·

Gold Plan: maximum out of pocket ranging from $4,250 single to $8,500 family

·

Silver Plan: maximum out of pocket ranging from $5,100 single to $12,700 family

·

Silver CDHP: maximum out of pocket ranging from $5,100 single to $10,200 family

The City contributes up to 90% of the premium for the Silver CDHP plan for each employee
regardless of plan chosen. The City also provides first dollar coverage through a Health
Reimbursement Account (HRA) equal to $4,500 for single plans and $9,000 for all other plans. The
City has exposure to the extent of funded deductibles.
City Contribution toward a BCBS Plan

City Funding toward
HRA

Single

$371.55

$4,500

Two Person

$743.09

$9,000

Employee & Child

$717.08

$9,000

Family

$1,044.05

$9,000

In the year ending June 30, 2014, the City paid $200,890 in HRA deductible expenses. The City’s
experience has been that 55% of available HRA funds are used. The City does not believe it has a
material exposure at June 30, 2014 as the deposit with the administrator of $12,175 (in prepaid
expenses) covers any claims not yet presented.
The City of Winooski is also a member of the Vermont League of Cities and Towns Unemployment
Insurance Trust. The Unemployment Trust is a nonprofit corporation formed to provide
unemployment coverage for Vermont municipalities and is owned by the participating members. The
agreement does not permit the Unemployment Trust to make additional assessments to its members.
D. Operating Leases
The City has entered into operating leases for copiers, computer equipment, a postage machine and
electric vehicles. Lease expense for the fiscal year 2014 was $33,836. Future minimum lease
payments are as follows:
2015
2016
2017
2018

$ 42,841
41,201
22,441
15,675

Total

$ 122,158
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E. Parking Garage Leases
The City leases spaces in its parking garage on a long-term basis to four commercial tenants. Future
minimum rentals under these leases over the next five years are as follows:

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

$

477,384
488,754
500,404
484,746
496,422

Total

$ 2,447,710

Revenue recognized under these leases for 2014 is $466,284 which includes revenue for spaces
leased at tenants’ option in excess of the minimum.
In addition to the amounts above, one of the tenants pre-paid a portion of its lease commitment in
2011. This prepayment was deferred and is being amortized into revenue annually through June 30,
2024. The revenue recognized for this year is $69,231 and the unamortized, unearned revenue at
June 30, 2014 is $692,308. In addition to this, other tenants pre-paid a portion of their 2014 leases
before year end in the amount of $44,242. Total unearned revenue at June 30, 2014 was $736,550.
F. Concentration of Expenses
The City purchased all one of its water from Champlain Water District (CWD) for the year ended
June 30, 2014. The City purchased $327,539 of water from CWD.
G. TIF District
The City Council approved the establishment of a Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District on
November 2, 2000 which was later approved by the Vermont Legislature in 2000. The TIF District
allowed the City to undertake and pay for infrastructure improvements and community development
in its downtown. In 2004, Winooski voters approved $25.9 million in revenue bonds to finance
improvements in the District. As of April 1, 2004, the taxable value of properties in the District was
frozen at $24,822,940. With a TIF District, the value of properties within the District are frozen at
the time the District is created. All property taxes generated by the original base continue to go to the
municipal General Fund and the State Education Fund. For twenty (20) years, all of the municipal
and education property taxes generated by any “new” development will finance the TIF District
infrastructure debt with the exception of 2% of the education property taxes going to the State
Education Fund. As part of the downtown development, the City constructed a parking garage and
private developers built commercial and residential properties. Revenues from the parking garage
and from agreements with the developers are also pledged towards repayment of the debt.
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In 2013, the Vermont State Auditor examined the District and had several findings regarding the
City’s operation of the District. This was the first such audit of the District as well as for other
districts in several other municipalities around the state. All of the audits had findings and it was
determined that the original TIF legislation was inconsistent and unclear. Therefore, the State
Auditor settled with the municipalities involved, including the City. The settlement with the City
provides for it to repay the State Education Fund $1,300 and for the City’s General Fund to provide
$62,000 additional revenue to the City’s TIF District. As of 2014, these payments had been remitted
in full with documentation provided to the Vermont Economic Progress Council in compliance with
Act 80.
H. Related Party Transactions
The Mayor and the City Grand Juror are related. The Grand Juror was paid $7,560 during the year
ended June 30, 2014.
I. Commitments and Contingencies
Grants and contracts require the fulfillment of certain conditions set forth in the instrument of the
grant or contract including a true up by the grantor. Failure to fulfill the conditions or the results of
the true up could result in the return of funds to the grantors. Although that is a possibility,
management deems the contingency remote, since by accepting the awards and their terms, it has
accommodated the objectives of the City to the provisions of the grant.
The City is a participating member in the Chittenden Solid Waste District (CSWD), Champlain Water
District (CWD), and the Chittenden County Transportation Association (CCTA). The City could be
subject to a portion, or all, of these entities’ debt if these entities experience financial problems.
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CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Budget
Revenue:
Taxes
Charges for Services
Investment Income
Intergovernmental Income
Fees, Fines and Forfeits
Licenses and Permits
Other
O'Brien Community Center

$

Total Revenue
Expenditures:
Mayor & City Council
City Manager's Department
Legal Department
Finance/Records/General Services Department
Planning/Zoning/Assessing
Building Regulation
Health Department
Rental Registry
Fire Department
Police Department
Engineering Services
Public Works Department
Grounds & Facilities Department
Community Center
Community Services
Pool Operation
Senior Citizens Center
Library Department
Regional Programs
Capital Program
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenue Over Expenditures

$

Actual

4,815,265
210,000
9,000
439,608
179,500
17,950
115,700
299,727

$

4,926,372
223,171
6,339
417,688
187,894
25,946
149,995
308,329

158,984

13,789
153,347
72,000
627,218
82,968
1,975
13,200
161,000
290,866
2,240,154
32,819
613,721
470,577
299,727
168,183
45,220
31,956
152,904
223,167
391,959

12,952
150,965
74,548
629,177
83,718
330
8,783
157,823
285,296
2,224,757
38,253
508,108
468,743
308,330
180,216
43,678
28,636
148,885
220,035
391,959

837
2,382
(2,548)
(1,959)
(750)
1,645
4,417
3,177
5,570
15,397
(5,434)
105,613
1,834
(8,603)
(12,033)
1,542
3,320
4,019
3,132
0

6,086,750

5,965,192

121,558

0

280,542

$

303,035

The reconciling items are due to combining five (5) funds with the General Fund in order to comply with GASB Statement No. 54.
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111,107
13,171
(2,661)
(21,920)
8,394
7,996
34,295
8,602

6,245,734

(230,805)
258,979
(55,535)
49,854

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.

$

6,086,750

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis:
Expenditures of other funds combined with the General Fund
Revenues of other funds combined with the General Fund
Transfers In - Intrafund
Transfers Out - Intrafund
Excess of Revenue and Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses - Exhibit D

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

$

280,542
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Community
Center
Fund

Justice
Center
Fund

Special Revenue Funds
Woman
Helping
Battered
Woman
Fund

Asset
Forfeitures
Fund

JAG
Fund

Total

ASSETS
Cash
Grants Receivable
Due From Other Funds
TOTAL ASSETS

$

0
0
330,708

$

91
0
14,040

$

0
0
0

$

3,000
0
4,244

$

0
79,666
0

$

3,091
79,666
348,992

$

330,708

$

14,131

$

0

$

7,244

$

79,666

$

431,749

$

55
0
0
0

0
0
0
79,666

$

2,899
2,522
9,776
79,666

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll
Unearned Revenue
Due to Other Funds
Total Liabilities

$

1,844
2,522
9,776
0

$

0
0
0
0

$

1,000
0
0
0

$

55

14,142

0

1,000

79,666

94,863

0

0

0

0

79,666

79,666

0

0

0

0

79,666

79,666

330,653
0

0
(11)

0
0

6,244
0

0
(79,666)

336,897
(79,677)

330,653

(11)

0

6,244

(79,666)

257,220

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Grant Revenue
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances/
(Deficits)
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES

$

330,708

$

14,131

See Disclaimer in the Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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$

0

$

7,244

$

79,666

$

431,749
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
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Community
Center
Fund
Revenue:
Intergovernmental
Donations
Other

$

Total Revenue

0
101,260
0

Special Revenue Funds
Woman
Helping
Battered
Woman
Fund

Justice
Center
Fund

$

175,453
100
0

$

0
92
0

Asset
Forfeitures
Fund

$

16,264
0
5,113

JAG
Fund

$

Total

75,907
0
0

$

267,624
101,452
5,113

101,260

175,553

92

21,377

75,907

374,189

20,473

0
186,564

0
0

0
25,326

0
5,707

20,473
217,597

0

0

0

0

143,321

143,321

20,473

186,564

0

25,326

149,028

381,391

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenue
Over Expenditures

80,787

(11,011)

92

(3,949)

(73,121)

Other Financing Sources/(Uses):
Transfers In
Transfers Out

0
(23,760)

11,000
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

11,000
(23,760)

(23,760)

11,000

0

0

0

(12,760)

Expenditures:
Community Development
Public Safety
Capital Outlay:
Public Safety
Total Expenditures

Total Other Financing
Sources/(Uses)
Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenue
and Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures and
and Other Financing/(Uses)
Fund Balances/(Deficit) July 1, 2013
Fund Balances/(Deficit) June 30, 2014

$

(7,202)

57,027

(11)

92

(3,949)

(73,121)

(19,962)

273,626

0

(92)

10,193

(6,545)

277,182

330,653

$

(11)

$

See Disclaimer in the Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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0

$

6,244

$

(79,666)

$

257,220

Schedule 4
Page 1 of 2
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Grant Title
Pass Through Grantor/
Federal Grant/Program Title

Grant
Number

CFDA
Number

Grant
Amount

Expenditures

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Direct Programs
Community Facilities Loans and Grants

VT-00

10.766

4614R7911200

10.559

7,800

$

1,720

Passed through State of Vermont Department of
Education
Summer Food Service Program Grant

n/a

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

15,907
17,627

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed through State of Vermont Department of Public Safety
State Homeland Security Grant - Equipment
State Homeland Security Grant - Equipment

02140-73164V-105
02140-71252-013

97.067
97.067

72,414
65,907

Total U.S. Department of Homeland
Security

72,414
65,907

138,321

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed through State of Vermont Agency
of Housing and Community Affairs
Community Development Block Grant

07110-SS-2010-WinooskiCity-00006

14.228

764,500

Total U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development

319,919

319,919

U.S. Department of Justice
Direct Programs
Edward Byrne Justice Assistance Grant
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program

2010DJ-BX-0682
104766

16.738
16.607

18,803
2,909

707
2,909

03520-1321

16.812

25,000

20,496

Passed through the State of Vermont Department of Corrections
Second Chance Act Prisoner Reentry Initiative
Total U.S. Department of Justice

24,112

U.S. Department of Labor
Passed through the State of Vermont Department of Labor
WIA Youth Activities
WIA Youth Activities

135233181
145233181

Total U.S. Department of Labor

17.259
17.259

11,000
10,000

8,292
384
8,676

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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Grant Title
Pass Through Grantor/
Federal Grant/Program Title

Grant
Number

CFDA
Number

Grant
Amount

Expenditures

U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed through the State of Vermont Department of Public Safety
State & Community Highway Safety
State & Community Highway Safety

02140-1213-2263
02140-1314-2067

20.600
20.600

5,000
5,000

$

Total U.S. Department of Transportation

5,000
5,000
10,000

Total Federal Awards

$

518,655

Basis of Presentation:
The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the Federal grant activity of the City of Winooski, Vermont and was prepared using
the significant accounting policies outlined in Note 1 to the financial statements. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations". Therefore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.
Subrecipients:
Of the Federal expenditures presented in the schedule, the City of Winooski, Vermont provided Federal awards to subrecipients as follows:
Federal
CFDA
Number

Program Title
Community Development Block Grant

14.228

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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Amounts Provided
to Subrecipients
$

319,919

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with “Government Auditing Standards”

Honorable City Council
City of Winooski
27 West Allen Street
Winooski, Vermont 05404

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in “Government
Auditing Standards” issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the City of Winooski, Vermont as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Winooski,
Vermont’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated January 21, 2015.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Winooski, Vermont’s
internal control over financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Winooski, Vermont’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City of Winooski, Vermont’s internal control over financial reporting.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions,
to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the City of Winooski, Vermont’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit the attention of those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses. In addition, because of inherent limitations in internal control, including the
possibility of management override of controls, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected by such controls. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Winooski,
Vermont’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not
an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
“Government Auditing Standards”.
However, we noted other matters that we reported in a separate letter to the
management of the City of Winooski, Vermont dated January 21, 2015.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Winooski, Vermont’s internal control or on compliance. This report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with “Government Auditing Standards” in
considering the City of Winooski, Vermont’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

January 21, 2015
Montpelier, Vermont
VT Lic. #92-000180
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each
Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133
Honorable City Council
City of Winooski
27 West Allen Street
Winooski, Vermont 05404
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited City of Winooski, Vermont compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) “Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement” that could have a direct and material effect on the City of Winooski,
Vermont’s major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2014. The City of Winooski,
Vermont’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Deficiencies in Internal Control.
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants applicable to its federal programs.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the City of Winooski,
Vermont’s major federal program based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to previously.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in “Government Auditing Standards”, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and OMB Circular A-133 “Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit
Organizations”. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to previously that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of
Winooski, Vermont’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion on compliance for its major federal program. However, our audit does not
provide a legal determination of the City of Winooski, Vermont’s compliance.
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City of Winooski, Vermont

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the City of Winooski, Vermont complied, in all material respects, with
the types of compliance requirements referred to previously that could have a direct and material
effect on its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2014.
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
The management of the City of Winooski, Vermont is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to previously. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City
of Winooski, Vermont’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on its major federal program to determine the auditing procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance
and to test and report on the internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Winooski, Vermont’s internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation
of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.
January 21, 2015
Montpelier, Vermont
VT Lic. #92-000180
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CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FINDINGS AND DEFICIENCIES IN INTERNAL CONTROL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

There were no prior year findings.
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CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND DEFICIENCIES IN INTERNAL CONTROL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
Financial Statements
Type of Auditor’s Report Issued:
Unmodified.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:
Material Weaknesses identified:
No.
Significant Deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses:
No.
Noncompliance material to financial statements:
None noted.
Federal Awards
Internal Control Over Major Programs:
Material Weaknesses identified:
No.
Significant Deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses:
No.
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major program:
Unmodified.
There are no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular
A-133, Section .510(a).
Major Programs:
CFDA #

Program

14.228

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development: Community Development Block
Grant

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs was $300,000.
The auditee did not qualify as a low risk auditee.
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